
 

MAY 20, 2021 
In person and… 

via zoom: https://zoom.us/j/5019876154?pwd=U0UrRC8rcnQzMUtkbUhzeHNSNzZ5Zz09 
(or click on the “CONNECT VIA ZOOM” link at emanuelsb.org) 

Or call in: 1-669-900-6833 Meeting ID: 501 987 6154 Password: 472615 

LEARNING 
1. Why We Wear Our Masks .............................................................................. Stuart Sweet, President 

BUSINESS 
 
2. Certification of Quorum and Approval of Motions .......................................... Michael Reiter, Secretary 

REPORTS 
3. Report ................................................................................................................  Rabbi Lindy Reznick 
4. Report ...................................................................................................... Cantor Jennifer Bern-Vogel 
5. Financial Report ......................................................................Kathy Rosenfeld, Chief Financial Officer 
6. Sisterhood Report ....................................................................... Karyn Lehmann, Sisterhood President 
7. Member Memorial ............................................................................................... Rabbi Lindy Reznick 
8. Report of Nominating Committee ............................................................. Jeffrey Spears, Past President 
9. Bylaws Changes ............................................................................................................. Stuart Sweet 
10. President’s Award and President’s Report ......................................................................... Stuart Sweet 
11. Good and Welfare 

 

https://zoom.us/j/5019876154?pwd=U0UrRC8rcnQzMUtkbUhzeHNSNzZ5Zz09


1495 Ford Street • Redlands, California • 92373 • 909.307.0400 • cee@emanuelsb.org

Lindy Reznick
Rabbi 

Hillel Cohn
Rabbi Emeritus

Jennifer Bern-Vogel, D.M.
Cantor

Jerry Ripley
Organist/Choir Director

Marcela Lavi
Education and Youth Dir.

Judy Filsinger
Administrator

Tamicka Walton
Executive Asst. to Rabbi

Stuart Sweet
President

Susan Damron
Vice President

Kathy Rosenfeld
Chief Financial Officer

Michael Reiter
Secretary

Greg Weissman
Immediate Past President 

Karyn Lehmann
Sisterhood President

Marvin Reiter
Member-at-Large

               

Directors
Rhian Beutler
Jay Donenfeld
Graham Ohayon
Michael Paisner
Tim Plueger
Rachael Raynes
Leslie Soltz
Scott Wilkie

Home of Eternity 
Cemetery and Mausoleum
8th and Sierra Way
San Bernardino, California

Member
Union for Reform Judaism 

Proposed Slate of Officers 2020-2021

President: Dr. Susan Damron
First Vice President: Michael Reiter

Second Vice President: Karyn Lehmann
Chief Financial Officer: Kathy Rosenfeld

Secretary: Leslie Soltz
Immediate Past President: Stuart Sweet

Board of Directors (Term ending 2022)
Graham Ohayon

Craig Beasley (complete term vacated by Rachael Raynes)
Rhian Beutler

Board of Directors (Term ending 2023)
Michael Paisner

Tim Plueger
Dr. Elizabeth Raskin (complete term vacated by Leslie Soltz)

Board of Directors (Term ending 2024)
Dr. Sharon Lang
Dr. Tonya Brooks
Adelyn Durazzo



1495 Ford Street • Redlands, California • 92373 • 909.307.0400 • cee@emanuelsb.org

Lindy Reznick
Rabbi 

Hillel Cohn
Rabbi Emeritus

Jennifer Bern-Vogel, D.M.
Cantor

Jerry Ripley
Organist/Choir Director

Marcela Lavi
Education and Youth Dir.

Judy Filsinger
Administrator

Tamicka Walton
Executive Asst. to Rabbi

Stuart Sweet
President

Susan Damron
Vice President

Kathy Rosenfeld
Chief Financial Officer

Michael Reiter
Secretary

Greg Weissman
Immediate Past President 

Karyn Lehmann
Sisterhood President

Marvin Reiter
Member-at-Large

               

Directors
Rhian Beutler
Jay Donenfeld
Graham Ohayon
Michael Paisner
Tim Plueger
Rachael Raynes
Leslie Soltz
Scott Wilkie

Home of Eternity 
Cemetery and Mausoleum
8th and Sierra Way
San Bernardino, California

Member
Union for Reform Judaism 

Reports on Ongoing Projects

Boruchin Garden Project
The garden project behind our building has been moving slowly due to COVID-19 safety 
concerns and due to the shutdown of non-essential city offices in 2020. The Redlands City 
Council is expected to have approved an extension to our permits and paperwork that 
will allow us to continue as it becomes safer to proceed. The congregation expresses its 
gratitude to Greg Weissman, Paul Shimoff, Justin Swant, and Steven Becker for their hard 
work shepherding this project. 

Security System Upgrades
In the spring of 2020, the state of California awarded Congregation Emanu El over 
$127,000 to upgrade and harden our physical plant. The grant includes funds for security 
camera upgrades, new lighting, new doors, an entry gate, money for security guards, and 
other improvements. The has been moving slowly due to COVID-19 safety concerns 
and due to the shutdown of non-essential city offices in 2020. To date, security camera 
upgrades have been completed and we have awarded a bid for lighting upgrades. With 
general improvements in our health and safety, progress is happening quickly. The state 
will not allow any funds to be spent after December 31, 2021, but we are free to apply for 
a new grant for any projects we haven’t completed. The congregation is grateful to Phil 
Holder and Michael Reiter for their efforts on this project. 

Sanctuary A/V upgrades
In 2019, the board of directors voted to set aside funds to improve the audio and video 
systems in the sanctuary. The Wi-Fi was upgraded in 2020 thanks to a gift from the 
Chapman family of Novi, Michigan. Efforts are underway to add a camera system to the 
sanctuary that will allow for a pleasing Zoom experience once we return to in-person 
services. This effort is expected to be complete well before high holy days. 

Boruchin Family Learning Center
The estate of Isak Boruchin bequeathed the congregation over $800,000 in 2020. 
Approximately $35,000 is being used for a renovation and refurbishing effort in our “back 
classroom. In addition to new furniture, all new technology will be implemented to help 
our students. This project is proceeding and is expected to be completed before students 
return to in-person instruction. 



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF  
CONGREGATION EMANU EL 

May 21, 2020 via Zoom 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by President Stuart Sweet who provided a community 
prayer. 
 
1. Secretary Michael Reiter certified that there existed a quorum sufficient for the meeting to 

commence, and certified that all motions and documents submitted to the congregation for approval 
prior to the meeting were approved by simple majority. This includes approval of the slate of 
officers. 

2. Rabbi Lindy Reznick provided an oral report of the congregation’s spiritual activities in the past 
fiscal year. 

3. Cantor Jennifer Bern-Vogel provided an oral report of the both her activities and the congregation’s 
music program over the past fiscal year. 

4. President Stuart Sweet provided a report of the state of the congregation, and expressed gratitude to 
the congregation and clergy for their steadfastness and support during lockdown. 

5. Chief Financial Officer Kathy Rosenfeld presented a report to the congregation detailing our 
financial state. 

6. Sisterhood President Karyn Lehmann presented a report of Sisterhood’s activities in the prior fiscal 
year and detailed Sisterhood’s gift to the congregation. President Stuart Sweet expressed gratitude 
to the Sisterhood in recognition of this gift. 

7. Rabbi Lindy Reznick presented a memorial to the members of the Congregation whom we have lost 
in 2020-2021. 

8. President Stuart Sweet offered a presentation appreciating many members of the congregation for 
their efforts in the past year. Copies of the presentation will be available in print and online. 

9. President Stuart Sweet presented the President’s Award to Lisa Wise-Wolk for her decades of 
dedicated volunteer efforts to the congregation. 

10. A drawing was held for an Apple iPad. A random number was generated to correspond to the 
members in the order in which they appear on the participants list. The family of Karen and Steven 
Levine won the iPad which will be available at the temple office. 

11. The congregation offered good and welfare. The meeting was concluded by President Stuart Sweet. 

Respectfully, 

Stuart Sweet 
for Michael Reiter, Secretary 



Annual SJL report– May 2021  

 
Dear board members,  

The past school year was a challenging one but thanks to the teachers, students, music sessions 
with Rick and Addie and great support from Rabbi Reznick and the Temple’s president Stuart 
Sweet, we succeeded in having meaningful learning of Jewish holidays and traditions, prayers, 
and Hebrew.  

This year we purchased the Shalom learning curriculum, which gave the teachers many 
resources and facilitated the teaching. I hope to continue to use it next year.  

We had once a month Toddler time around the Jewish holidays and taught rituals, songs, and 
stories.  

We had youth group meetings, for the 6th to 8th graders and the 9th to 10th graders. The groups 
met  once a month for fun and community activities.  

We had two L’Dor va Dor events, toddlers and grandparents, and cooking class for Passover.  

 

Sincerely, 

Marcela Lavi 

 

 

 



Mar 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
100100 · Operating Accounts

111130 · Cash - Banner Bank - 1511 12,347

Total 100100 · Operating Accounts 12,347

100111 · Petty cash 25

100300 · Specified Funds
100140 · Cash - Finance Committee - 2030 40,235

100305 · Cash - Capital Campaign - 1545 2,061

100307 · Cash - Mortgage Ret Acct - 1552 15,521

100310 · Merrill Lynch Investment Funds
100320 · Restricted Funds - Investments

100335 · Morton Aronoff Fund - 4353 134,060

100337 · Endowment Fund - 4063 6,497

100338 · Cemetery Investment - 4057 50,504

Total 100320 · Restricted Funds - Investments 191,061

100350 · Restricted Funds - Money Market
100322 · Lerner Bequest Fund 5,013

100334 · Tzedakah Fund 752

100351 · Campership Fund 681

100352 · Feldheym Lecture Fund 7,865

100353 · Heller Music Fund 18,963

100354 · SJL Special Projects Fund 6,574

100356 · Russler Archives 1,258

100359 · SJL Fundraisers &  Donations 2,212

Total 100350 · Restricted Funds - Money Market 43,317

Total 100310 · Merrill Lynch Investment Funds 234,378

Total 100300 · Specified Funds 292,195

Total Checking/Savings 304,567

Total Current Assets 304,567

Fixed Assets
11200 · Land 2,500,000

29122 · Building 3,213,770

Total Fixed Assets 5,713,770

TOTAL ASSETS 6,018,337

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

21130 · Short Term Loans Payable 40,000

21136-1 · Banner Bank Payroll Protection 53,003

21138 · Rabbi Pension Payable 50,862

11:20 AM Congregation Emanu El

04/14/21 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of March 31, 2021

Page 1



Mar 31, 21

21400 · Exchange Accounts
21272 · Rabbi Reznick - Discretionary 12,607

21282 · Food for the Poor 455

21286 · Exchange - Sisterhood 3,576

21289 · Turkey donation money 195

21291 · Cemetery Holding 15

21292 · CEE Campership Fund 190

21294 · Tzedakah box 1,377

21299 · Confirmation Exchange 208

21302 · Landscaping Fund 804

21313 · Exchange - CEE 5,331

21405 · Exchange - Beautification 231

21406 · Exchange - G. Cutler Meal Cond 234

21412 · Exchange-Capital Campaign 250

21414 · Cantor's Discretionary Fund 3,049

21415 · Exchange-Tyger 1,901

21418 · Exchange - Educational Programs 15,990

Total 21400 · Exchange Accounts 46,413

Total Other Current Liabilities 190,277

Total Current Liabilities 190,277

Long Term Liabilities
21137 · Banner Bank Mortgage - 2900 446,250

Total Long Term Liabilities 446,250

Total Liabilities 636,528

Equity
1110 · Retained Earnings 5,374,137

28000 · Capital Campaign Contributions
28002 · Giving Op - Torah Cov &  Decor -798

28000 · Capital Campaign Contributions - Other 43,286

Total 28000 · Capital Campaign Contributions 42,488

Net Income -34,815

Total Equity 5,381,809

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,018,337

11:20 AM Congregation Emanu El

04/14/21 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of March 31, 2021

Page 2



Congregation Emanu El

Budget for 2021/22 Budget Budget

2020/2021 2021/2022

Dues 268,655$        245,000$        Based on Dues collected in 2019-2020

Building Fund 15,000$           10,000$           

Donations 45,000$           125,000$        Includes Development Initiative in 2021/22

High Holy Days 35,000$           33,000$           

Temple Use 5,000$             20,000$           

Walls 6,000$             6,000$             

Bat/Bar Mitzvah 1,200$             1,000$             

Fund Raising 128,150$        106,415$        Plug

School for Jewish Living 16,500$           7,000$             Not a final number

Temple Programs 3,000$             3,000$             

Mortgage Retirment Fund -$                 18,000$           

Credit Card Fee Income -$                 50$                   

Total Income 523,505$        574,465$        A 10% Increase from 2020/2021

Clergy Expenses 204,700$        220,765$        

Building and Janitorial 62,793$           64,500$           

Utilities 33,600$           33,600$           

Insurance 19,500$           21,200$           

Administration 110,720$        103,165$        

School for Jewish Living 30,875$           38,440$           Not a final number

Music 26,257$           26,685$           

Ritual 9,200$             16,900$           

URJ Dues 11,760$           11,760$           

Community Programs 4,400$             4,000$             

Seniors 3,500$             3,500$             

Mortgage Payments - Principal and Interest -$                 25,150$           

Interest on the Line of Credit -$                 200$                

Walls Expense 6,200$             4,000$             

Paypal Fees -$                 600$                

Total Expenses 523,505$        574,465$        A 10% Increase from 2020/2021

Net Income/Loss -$                 -$                 

Percent of Total Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 69%

School of Jewish Living 7%

Mortgage and Line of Credit Payments 4%

URJ Dues 2%

Utilities 6%



BYLAWS	OF	
CONGREGATION	EMANU	EL	

ADOPTED	MAY	16,	2019MAY	20,	2021	
 

ARTICLE I 
NAME, PURPOSE AND LOCATION OF BUSINESS 

 
 1.01  The name of this non-profit religious corporation shall be Congregation 
EMANU EL, hereinafter referred to as  "Congregation." 
  
 1.02  The purposes of this organization are: 
 
  (a)  To provide a synagogue for the Jewish residents of the area and 
opportunities for worship and celebration; cultivate a love and understanding of the Jewish 
heritage; and to provide opportunities for assembly and the furtherance of the values of the 
Jewish People.  The synagogue shall cooperate with other religious and cultural institutions 
within the community to bring about a more productive and righteous society.  
   
  (b)  To promote the purpose specified in subparagraph (a) of this Section; to 
raise and disburse funds for religious, educational, community and welfare purposes; to 
purchase, receive, take, acquire, hold, sell, convey or otherwise dispose of property, 
whether real, personal or mixed; to otherwise acquire and hold all property, real or 
personal, including shares of stock, bonds and securities of other corporations, insofar as is 
consistent with the laws of the State of California; to act as trustee under any trust 
incidental to the principal objects of the Congregation, and to receive, hold, administer and 
expend funds and property subject to such trust; to convey, exchange, lease, mortgage, 
encumber, transfer upon trust or otherwise dispose of all property, real or personal; to 
borrow money, contract debts and issue bonds, notes and debentures and secure the same; 
to contract and be contracted with; and to do all lawful acts necessary or expedient for the 
administration of the affairs and attainment of the purposes of the Congregation. 
 
  (c ) To promote a welcoming environment for worship by conforming to or 
exceeding all laws and mandates from the State of California and the United States of 
America regarding equal opportunity and representation . with the exception that 
Congregation Emanu El shall reserve its right under California and Federal law to restrict 
its membership and operations to those benefiting the Jewish community, as mandated by 
the clergy and Board.  
 

 
  (d) To provide a haven for individuals persecuted for their race, gender 
identity, or other personal trait, as mandated by the clergy and the Board. Congregation 
Emanu El shall not tolerate any act of systemic hatred or sexual harassment within its 
community or its membership. 
 
 



 1.03  The properties and assets of this nonprofit Congregation are irrevocably 
dedicated to charitable and religious purposes.  No dividends shall be declared or paid to 
any member of the Congregation, nor shall any member, upon dissolution of the 
Congregation for any reason, be entitled to receive a distributive or any share of the assets 
then owned or held by the Congregation, it being expressly understood that the 
Congregation is not formed for profit and is a corporation which does not contemplate any 
pecuniary gain, profit or earnings of the Congregation which shall inure to the benefit of 
any private shareholder, individual or member.  Upon dissolution of the Congregation, all of 
the business, property, assets shall go and be set over to and used for the objects and 
purposes set forth in the Articles of Incorporation. 
 
 1.04  The Congregation has formed under the California Nonprofit Religious 
Congregation Laws for the public purposes described above, and it shall  be nonprofit.  The 
Congregation shall not, except in an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or 
exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes described above. 
 
 1.05  The principal office of the Congregation shall be in the County of San 
Bernardino, State of California.  The original or certified copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation and these Bylaws, as amended, shall be kept at the principal office of the 
Congregation. 
 
 1.06  The Congregation may also have offices at such other places, within or without 
the State of California, as its business may require and as the Board of Directors may from 
time to time designate. 
 
 1.07  As used in these Bylaws, the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender, and the 
singular or plural number, shall each be deemed to include the others whenever the 
context so indicates. 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
MEMBERSHIP, DUES, AND RESIGNATION AND EXPULSION 

 
 2.01  There shall be three classes of memberships in the Congregation, which are as 
follows:  (1)  voting memberships; (2) non-voting memberships, and (3) associate 
memberships; plus honorary memberships.  The interests and rights of all members 
(except those of voting) shall be equal.There shall be two classes of memberships in the 
congregation. Except for the right to vote, the interests and rights of all members shall be 
equal. 

(a)  Voting membership shall be extended to any person who conforms to 
the specifics of Article 2.02 (a). The right to vote or to have a voting membership 
shall not be dependent on physical proximity to Congregation Emanu El’s primary 
location. 
 

(b)  Non-voting memberships may be granted to any person who wishes 
to be affiliated with Congregation Emanu El but who does not conform to the 



specifics of Article 2.02.  They shall not be considered "members" as defined by the 
California Nonprofit Corporation Law and, specifically, shall not be entitled to vote. 

 
(c)  Those members who were previously classified as “associate 

members” according to past bylaws will heretofore be considered full voting 
members so long as they meet the criteria of Article 2.02 (a), or will be considered 
non-voting members if they do not. 
 

 
 2.02   (a) Voting memberships are based on a "unit" concept.  A voting member 
unit shall consist of at least one (1) Jewish or actively converting adult as defined in 2.02 
(d) and may include other adults and children who must reside in the same household.  
However, in no event shall any unit be entitled to more than one (1) vote. A non-Jewish 
member shall have all voting rights with the exception of voting on matters determining 
the religious policies and practices of the Congregation.  
 
  (b)  In the event of the termination of a marriage by death of the Jewish 
spouse, or by dissolution of the marriage, the non-Jewish spouse may continue to be a 
voting member unit and enjoy all the rights of membership except as limited above. 
  
  (c)  All notices to be given by the Congregation to the unit shall be 
directed to the person(s) at the physical or electronic address shown on the current 
records of the Congregation. 
 
  (d) Individuals undergoing conversion to the Jewish faith in a program 
administered or approved by Congregation Emanu El clergy may be granted full 
membership. If conversion does not occur within two (2) years, the membership may be 
revoked. 
 
 2.03 Non-voting memberships may be created by the Board of Directors.  Such 
members shall have all of the rights and privileges afforded regular members herein except 
that they shall not be considered "members" as defined by the California Nonprofit 
Corporation Law and, specifically, shall not be entitled to vote. 
 
 2.04  Associate memberships shall be granted upon request to individuals residing 
in areas not served by the Congregation. Associate members have no voting rights and may 
be subject to other limitations. 
 
 2.05 The Board of Directors may confer the status of "honorary membership" on 
families and/or individuals whom it chooses to honor.  Honorary members shall have all 
the rights and privileges afforded regular members except that "honorary members" shall 
not be considered "members" as defined by the California Nonprofit Corporation Law and, 
specifically, shall not be entitled to vote unless, in electing them to "honorary membership" 
status, the Board of Directors explicitly determines that they shall have the right to vote. 
Honorary members shall be members for life unless membership is revoked by the Board 
of Directors. 



 
 2.036  Voting members of this organization shall pay dues in such amounts as may, 
from time to time, be fixed by the Board of Directors.  Each member shall be entitled to 
equal access to all activities of the Congregation, irrespective of the amounts of dues paid 
or contributions made to the corporation.   
 
 
 2.047  The Board of Directors shall approve form(s) to be used as a membership 
application. Application for membership shall be made on such form(s) and in such manner 
as the Board of Directors shall determine from time to time.  
  
 2.058  The Congregation shall maintain membership data including the name, 
mailing address, primary contact telephone number and preferred e-mail address of each 
member unit.  Termination of the membership of any member unit shall be recorded with 
the date on which such membership ceased.  Such data shall be kept at the Congregation's 
principal office. 
 
 2.069 No member of the Congregation shall be personally liable for the debts, 
liabilities, or obligations of the congregation. 
 
 2.0710 Membership in the Congregation is non-transferable and non-assignable. 
 
 2.0811 (a)  The voting membership of any member unit of the Congregation shall 
automatically terminate:  

(i) upon written resignation received by the Congregation by the 
United States Mail; or  

 
(ii) upon death of the last surviving member of the member unit. 
 

 
(b)  A member unit resigning or whose membership is terminated through death 
shall not be relieved from any obligation for charges incurred, services or benefits 
actually rendered, dues, assessments or fees, or arising from contract or otherwise. 
This Section shall not diminish any right of the Congregation to enforce any such 
obligation or obtain damages for its breach. 

 
(c) The membership of any member unit failing to pay dues when due may be 
terminated upon thirty (30) days written notice in the manner specified in Section 
3.03 (b) hereof. 

 
 2.0911 No member may be expelled or suspended, no membership or membership 
rights may be terminated or suspended, except for nonpayment of dues as set forth above, 
other than in accordance with the procedures set forth below.  Any expulsion, termination, 
or suspension must be accomplished in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner.  
Any expulsion, termination or suspension not in accord with the following procedure shall 
be void and without effect: 



 
(a)   The Board of Directors shall cause said member unit to be given fifteen (15) 
days written notice of the proposed expulsion, suspension, or termination and of the 
reasons therefor. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in these 
Bylaws, such notice shall be delivered by overnight courier service, with receipt for 
delivery to the last known address of said member unit. Notice shall be deemed 
delivered on the date of delivery. If delivery is refused, it shall be deemed to have 
been made on the date delivery was attempted. 

 
(b)  The member unit shall be afforded the right to be heard by a committee 
composed of five (5) Directors or Officers appointed by the President of the 
Congregation or, in the President's absence, by the 1st Vice-President. Whenever 
possible the committee shall include the President of the Congregation. Should said 
committee receive compelling evidence against said expulsion, suspension, or 
termination, the committee may defer the date of expulsion, suspension, or 
termination until the matter can be reconsidered at the next regular or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 
(c)   Any action challenging an expulsion, suspension or termination of membership, 
including any claim of alleging defective notice, must be commenced within one (1) 
year after the date of the expulsion, suspension, or termination. 

 
(d)   This section shall govern only the procedures for expulsion, suspension, or 
termination based upon good cause, as hereinafter defined.  Any expulsion, 
suspension, or termination based upon substantive grounds which violate 
contractual or other rights of the member or are otherwise unlawful, is not made 
valid merely by compliance with this section. 

 
(e)   Good cause shall be deemed to exist for the expulsion, suspension, or 
termination of a member upon a finding by a majority of the Board of Directors that 
the member has: 

 
(i) failed and continues to fail to abide by the Articles of Incorporation, 
Bylaws of the Congregation, or rules and regulations of the Board of 
Directors; or  

 
(ii) committed, or is in the course of committing, some act or acts prejudicial 
to the purposes of the corporation. 
 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

 
 3.01 (a) Meetings of members shall be held annually at the principal office of the 
Congregation or at such other place or places within the State of California, as may be 
designated from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors, for the purpose of 
electing Directors and officers, receiving reports concerning the Congregation's activities 
during the previous fiscal year, and for transacting such other business as may come before 
the meeting.   
 



(b) The meeting shall be on the third (3rd) Thursday in May of each year unless 
another date in May is designated by the Board of Directors no later than at its March 
meeting. 
 

(c) The board may, by majority vote, elect to hold any meeting electronically for any 
reason.  In the event that public health orders prohibit any gathering sufficient to form a 
quorum, electronic meetings shall be held and have the full force of in-person meetings. In 
the case of meetings held electronically, rules for notification in 3.03 still apply, unless 
immediate health concerns dictate that a meeting change from in-person to electronic. 
 
 

 3.02 Special meetings of members may be called by the Board of Directors, 
the President, any seven (7) Directors or Officers of the Congregation, or at the 
written request of twenty percent (20%) of the voting members of the 
Congregation. Special meetings of the members shall be held at the principal office 
of the Congregation. The rules for electronic meetings in 3.01 shall apply to special 
meetings as well. 

 
 
 3.03 (a)  Whenever voting member units are required or permitted to take any 
action at a meeting, a written notice of the meeting shall be given not less than ten (10) 
days nor more than ninety (90) days before the date of the meeting to each member unit 
entitled to vote thereat, provided. Notice may be provided by US mail, with notices to be 
sent ten (10) days in advance of the meeting or more, or by electronic mail provided that 
records of open rates and rejection rates may be acquired, and that within five (5) days the 
electronically delivered notice has been opened by a minimum of thirty (30) percent of the 
total recipients. Members who have previously notified the Congregation offices that they 
do not wish electronic communication must be notified by first class mail even if other 
members are notified electronically. Such notice shall state the place, date, and time of the 
meeting, and 
 

(i) in the case of a special meeting, the general nature of the business to be 
transacted, and no other business may be transacted; or 

 
(ii) in the case of the annual meeting, those matters which the Board of 
Directors, at the time of the mailing of the notice, intends to present for 
action by the members. The notice of any meeting at which Directors and 
Officers are to be elected shall include the names of all those who are 
nominees.  

 
(b)  Notice of members' meetings, or any report, shall be given either personally, or 
by mail, or by other means of written communication, addressed to the member at 
the address of such member appearing on the records of the Congregation or given 
by the member to the Congregation for purpose of notice; or if no such address 
appears or is given, at the place where the principal office of the Congregation is 
located, or by publication at least once in a newspaper or general circulation in the 
county in which the principal office is located.  An affidavit of giving of notice or 
report in accordance with these Bylaws, executed by the Secretary or an assistant 
secretary of the Congregation, shall be prima facie evidence of the giving of the 
notice or the report. 

 



 3.04 A quorum shall consist of five percent (5%) of the voting members of the 
Congregation present in person or electronically as appropriate and in good standing. 
 
 3.05 In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of the members may be adjourned 
from time to time by the vote of a majority of the voting members present, but no other 
business shall be transacted. 
 
 3.06 When a meeting is adjourned for thirty (30) days or more, notice of the 
adjourned meeting shall be given as in case of an original meeting.  When a meeting is 
adjourned for less than thirty (30) days, it is not necessary to give any notice of time and 
place of the adjourned meeting or of the business to be transacted thereat other than by 
announcement at the meeting. 
 
 3.07 The members present at a meeting duly called or held, at which a quorum is 
present, may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal 
of enough members to leave less than a quorum. 
 
 3.08 Each voting member unit is entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted 
to a vote of the members.  Voting at duly held meetings shall be by voice vote except as 
otherwise expressly provided in these Bylaws, or as determined by the Board of Directors 
prior to the meeting at which such form of voting is to be used. 
 
 3.09 (a)   Meetings of members shall be presided over by the President of the 
Congregation or, in the absence of the President, by the Vice President next ranked by the 
Board of Directors or in the absence of both, by a Chairpersonman chosen by a majority of 
the voting members present.  The Secretary of the Congregation shall act as Secretary of all 
meetings of members provided that in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding officer 
shall appoint another person to act as Secretary for the meeting. 
 
  (b) Meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, as such rules 
may be revised from time to time, insofar as such rules are not inconsistent with or in 
conflict with these Bylaws, with the written rules, regulations, and policies of the 
Congregation, or with the Articles of Incorporation of the Congregation.  
 
 3.10 Votes by proxy shall not be allowed in congregational meetings. All members 
must be present either in person or via approved electronic medium to cast votes.  
 

ARTICLE IV 
DIRECTORS 

 
 4.01 At least one director shall be elected for each twenty-five (25) member 
families, including associate and honorary members. The minimum number of Directors 
shall be fixed at six (6).  
  (a) In addition to the elected Directors, the officers of the Congregation 
shall serve as Directors during the terms of their respective offices. 
  (b) In addition to the elected Directors, each retiring President of the 
Congregation shall serve as Director for a two (2) year term.  
  (c) The President of Sisterhood shall be a Director during her term of 
office. If the President of Sisterhood does not meet the qualifications in Section 4.04, or is 
an elected member of the Board, Sisterhood shall designate a person to serve as a Director 
who meets the qualifications in Section 4.04.  
  (d) Collectively, the Directors shall be known as the Board of Directors. 



 
 4.02 The words "Directors" and "Board", as used in the Articles of Incorporation, 
Bylaws, or the written rules, regulations, and policies of the Congregation, in relation to any 
power or duty requiring collective action, mean "Board of Directors." 
 
 4.03 Subject to any limitation contained in the Articles of Incorporation, the 
Directors shall exercise the powers of the Congregation, control its property, and conduct 
its affairs, except as otherwise provided by law. 
 
 4.04 Any person eighteen (18) years of age or older who is a Jewish member of 
the voting membership unit in good standing at the date of the election or appointment 
shall be eligible to election or appointment as a Director.  A Director shall be a Jewish 
member in good standing during the entire term, with “good standing” taken to mean no 
outstanding dues from the prior fiscal year and no default on previously agreed financial 
arrangements during the current year.  No more than one (1) person from any single 
member unit may serve as an elected Director at one time. 
 
 4.05 Each elected Director shall serve a three (3) year term, with the terms of the 
respective Directors to be staggered so that one-third (1/3) of the Directors are to be 
elected each year, except for those persons elected to fill an unexpired term.  The terms 
shall commence upon installation which shall take place between June 1 and June 15 and 
shall run for a period of three (3) years, unless otherwise terminated by law or in 
accordance with the Bylaws of the corporation. In the event that an installation cannot be 
held, Directors shall commence their terms on June 15.  All Directors of the corporation 
shall serve without compensation.  Directors may not be elected for more than one (1) 
consecutive three (3) year term. Directors who were elected to fill an unexpired term of 
fewer than three (3) full years may be elected to serve a subsequent three (3) year term 
but may not be elected to fill an unexpired term immediately after serving a full term. 
 
 4.06 (a)  A nominating committee shall be consist of five (5) members in good 
standing and shall be appointed by the President and approved by the Board of Directors. 
One of the appointees shall be the immediate Past-President, provided that the immediate 
Past-President is a member of the Congregation in good standing, as defined in article 4.04. 
Should the immediate Past-President not wish to serve or fail to qualify another Past-
President shall be appointed by the President and serve as chairperson. 
 
 (b) The Nominating Committee shall present via written or electronic delivery a 
slate of nominees for officers and directors no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Annual 
Meeting and such slate shall be approved by the Board of Directors. In the event of changes 
to the slate, the Congregation shall be notified by written or electronic delivery.  
 
 (c) Any other person desiring to stand for election as an officer or director shall 
submit a written statement of their wish to be placed on the ballot to the Secretary of the 
Congregation no later than thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting and shall be placed 
on the ballot providing they meet the qualifications in Section 4.04. In this event, the 
procedure for election shall be as follows: 
 

(i) A secret ballot shall be taken for the contested position(s). In the case 
of directors, a ballot shall be taken where all candidates are listed and 
each member unit must vote for a maximum number of candidates, 
corresponding to the number of open positions. 



(ii) The remainder of the slate, less the contested office(s) shall be 
presented for up/down vote as detailed below. 

 
   

4.07     In the event that a nominated officer or director wishes to withdraw from 
consideration within 30 days of the annual meeting, the remainder of the slate shall remain 
valid. A nomination will be permitted from the floor, at the annual meeting, to fill any 
vacancy. 
  

4.087 (a)   Meetings of the Board shall be held customarily at the principal office of 
the congregation. However, at the discretion of the President or any member designated to 
lead meetings, meetings may be held at an alternate location or electronically provided that 
a quorum is maintained and adequate notice is given. Meetings shall be held at the 
principal office of the Congregation unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors. 
 
  (b) Regular meetings of the Board shall be open to voting members and, 
at the discretion of the Board, may be open to the public. Those personnel and other 
matters which the President or the majority of the Board of Directors deem best to be 
conducted in private shall not be open to anyone other than voting members of the Board 
except by invitation by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.  Such meetings shall be 
held monthly on the third (3rd) Thursday except in the month in which the annual meeting 
is held.  Other meeting times may be designated by the Board by notice as specified in 
4.07(d) 
 
  (c) Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President, any 
Vice-President, or by any seven (7) Directors or Officers by notice as specified in 4.087(d). 
 
  (d) Where notice is required, it shall be either by first-class mail deposited at 
least four (4) days prior to the meeting or electronically delivered at least two (2) days 
prior to the meeting. Notice may be given using normal electronic mail provided that 
sufficient responses to the initial message, constituting a majority of the Officers and 
Directors, are received, whether affirmative or negative.  
  
  (e) The transactions of any meeting of the Board, however called and 
noticed or wherever held, are as valid as though the meeting had been duly held at the 
proper call and notice, provided a quorum as hereinafter defined, is present and provided 
that either before or after the meeting each of the Directors not present signs a waiver of 
notice, a consent to holding of the meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof.  All such 
waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the Congregation records or made a part 
of the minutes of the meeting. 
 
  (f) A quorum shall consist of one-half of the sum total number of voting 
Directors, including elected Officers. . 
 
  (g) Notwithstanding provisions of Section 4.07(b), all meetings of the 
Board shall be open to all voting members, except that the Board, in its discretion and by a 
majority vote of Directors present, may (i) exclude any persons from the meeting for 
disorderly conduct or conduct tending to disrupt the meeting, (ii) exclude all persons other 
than voting members of the Congregation, (iii) exclude all persons except those deemed 
necessary for the matter(s) being considered, or (iv) exclude all persons other than 
Directors. 
 



  (h) Members are at their option to attend meetings of the Board 
electronically. Voting members who attend electronically shall count toward quorums and 
their votes shall be valid.  Unless meetings are previously announced to be held 
electronically or have electronic simulcast, members must request an electronic simulcast 
one week prior to the meeting. If this request is unable to be honored, the requesting 
member shall be notified. 
 
 4.098 Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a 
meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board of Directors, unless 
the law, the Articles of Incorporation of the Congregation, or these Bylaws require a greater 
number. 
 
 4.1009  Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of 
Directors under any provisions of the law may be taken without a meeting, if a majority 
members of the Board individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. 
Electronic mail shall be deemed sufficient for this purpose provided that such consent is 
delivered to the Secretary..  Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the 
minutes of the proceedings of the Board.  Such action by written consent shall have the 
same force and effect as the unanimous vote of such Directors.  Any certificate or other 
document filed under any provision of law which relates to actions so taken shall state that 
the action was taken by  written consent of the Board of Directors without meeting and 
that the bylaws of the Congregation authorize the Directors so to act, and such statement 
shall be prima facie evidence of such authority. 
 
 4.110 (a) The Board may declare vacant the office of any Director who has:  (i) 
been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court; or (ii) been convicted of a felony; 
or (iii) who has been found by a final order or judgment of any court to have breached any 
duty under Article III, commencing with Section 9221 of the California Corporations Code.   
 
  (b) The Board may declare vacant the office of any Director who is no 
longer a member in good standing of the Congregation. 
 
  (c) Any or all Directors may be removed without cause under the 
following circumstances: (i) so long as the Congregation has fewer than fifty (50) members, 
such removal is approved by a majority of all members; or (ii) where the Congregation has 
fifty (50) or more members, such removal is approved by an affirmative vote or written 
ballot of a majority of the votes represented and voting at a duly held meeting at which a 
quorum is present (which affirmative vote also constitutes a majority of the required 
quorum). 
 
 4.12 (a) Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall exist: (i) on the death, 
resignation, or removal of any Director; (ii) whenever the number of Directors authorized 
is increased; or (iii) on failure of the members in any election to elect the full number of 
Directors authorized. 
 
 
  (b) The Board of Directors may shall declare vacant the office of a 
Director who is absent from four (4) or more regular meetings of the Board of Directors 
during the preceding twelve (12) month period. 
 
  (c) If a vacancy shall occur in the office of Director prior to the expiration 
of that term of office the President, with Board approval, may fill such vacancy by 



appointment.  Directors appointed and wishing to continue to serve must be elected to that 
position at the next annual meeting. 
 
 
 4.13 All past Presidents, who are members in good standing, shall be non-voting 
ex-officio members of the Board of Directors. 
 
 4.14   The Board of Directors may from time to time designate individuals with a 
distinguished record of service to the Congregation and/or the Jewish community as 
Honorary members of the Board of Directors. 
 
 4.15.  The President or presiding officers may suspend any meeting of the Board of 
Directors and proceed to “Executive Session” as defined by Robert’s Rules of Orderduring 
which time no record shall be kept and the proceedings shall remain confidential.  The 
meeting shall be reconvened and records shall resume, and reconvene the meeting at the 
end of “Executive Session.”  
 

ARTICLE V 
OFFICERS 

 
 5.01 The officers of the Congregation shall include a President, one (1) or more 
Vice-Presidents, a Secretary, and a Chief Financial Officer who fulfills the roles of Treasurer 
and Financial Secretary. . The Congregation may also have, at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors, such other officers or agents as it may deem desirable.  No person may hold 
more than one (1) of the following offices:  President, Vice President, Secretary, or Chief 
Financial Officer. 
 
 5.02 Any person who is qualified under 4.04 to be a Director is qualified to be an 
officer of the Congregation. Officers shall be elected by the members at the annual meeting.  
The term of office shall be one year commencing at installation of officers, no later than the 
start of the fiscal year which begins after the annual meeting in which the officer was 
elected.  
 
 5.03 Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority of 
the members at the time in office, at any regular or special meeting of the members, and 
such officer shall be removed should that officer cease to be qualified for the office as 
herein required.  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of 
Directors or to the President or Secretary of the Congregation. Any such resignation shall 
take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, 
and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be 
necessary to make it effective. 
 
 5.04 Any vacancy caused by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or 
otherwise of any officer shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion 
of the term.  Any vacancy in the office of Vice-President, Secretary, Chief Financial Officer 
(Treasurer), or Financial Secretary may be filled by appointment by the President until 
such time as the Board shall fill the vacancy. Vacancies may or may not be filled as the 
Board shall determine. 
 
 
 5.05 The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Congregation and 
shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, supervise and control the affairs of 



the Congregation. The President shall perform all duties incident to the office and such 
other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of the 
Congregation, by these Bylaws, or which may be prescribed from time to time by the Board 
of Directors.  The President shall preside at all meetings of the members and at meetings of 
the Board of Directors.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, by the Articles of 
Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, the President shall, in the name of the Congregation, 
execute such deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, checks, or other instruments, which shall 
from time to time be authorized by the Board of Directors.  In personnel matters, the 
President shall be empowered to execute employment contracts as authorized by the 
Board of Directors, conduct reviews and execute disciplinary measures in accordance with 
California law and with the Bylaws. The President shall also, ex officio, be a member of all 
standing committees of the Congregation.  
  
 
 5.06 In the absence of the President, or in the event of the President's inability or 
refusal to act, the Vice-Presidents, in order of their rank, or if not ranked, the Vice-
President designated by the Board of Directors, shall perform all the duties of the 
President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the 
restrictions on the President.  The Vice-Presidents shall have such other powers and 
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or 
by these Bylaws, or as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 5.07 The Secretary shall: 
 
Keep minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and of congregational meetings. Such 
minutes are to be presented for review via electronic mail or first class mail to the Board of 
Directors or Congregation, as appropriate, prior to the next meeting.  
  
 
  (c)  Keep at the principal office of the Congregation or such other place as the 
Board of Directors may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Directors and 
members, recording therein the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and 
if special, how authorized, notice thereof given, the names of those present at the meetings 
of members, the number of members present at meetings of members, and the proceedings 
thereof. 
 
  (d)  See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of 
these Bylaws or as required by law. 
 
  (e)  Be custodian of the records and the seal of the Congregation and see that 
the seal is affixed to all duly executed documents, the execution of which on behalf of the 
Congregation under its seal is authorized by law or by these Bylaws. 
 
  (f)  Keep or cause to be kept at the principal office of the Congregation an 
official membership roster containing the name and address of each member, and, in any 
case where membership has been terminated, the Secretary shall record such fact in the 
roster together with the date on which the membership ceased. 
 
  (f) Keep or cause to be kept at the principal office of the Congregation the 
original or copy of the Bylaws and minutes of meetings of the Directors or the members, to 
be exhibited upon request of any member upon reasonable request. 



 
 
  (g)  In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such 
other duties as may be required by law , the Articles of Incorporation of the Congregation, 
or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned to the Secretary from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. 
 
 
 5.08  Subject to the provision of Article VIII of these Bylaws, the Chief Financial 
Officer (Treasurer) shall have responsibility for the following: 
 
  (a)  All funds and securities of the Congregation, and deposit all such funds in 
the name of the Congregation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as shall 
be selected by the Board of Directors. 
 
  
  (b)  Disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of the Congregation as may 
be directed by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements. 
 
  (c) Prepare a comprehensive budget for the coming fiscal year to be 
approved by the Board of Directors no later than the final meeting of the Board of Directors 
for the current fiscal year. 
 
  (d) On a regular basis, determine expenses to the Congregation as within or 
outside the approved budget for the fiscal year and take appropriate action to approve, 
reject, or seek Board approval for such expenses as necessary. 
 
  (e)  Keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of the congregation's 
properties and business transactions, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, 
disbursements, gains and losses. 
  
 
  (f) Ensure that the books of account and financial records of the 
Congregation are kept at the principal office of the Congregation, for exhibit upon demand 
of any member, at any reasonable time and with reasonable notice. 
 
  (f)  Render to the President and Directors, whenever requested an account of 
any or all transactions entered into by the Chief Financial Officer and of the financial 
condition of the Congregation. 
 
  (g)  Prepare, or cause to be prepared, the financial statements to be included 
in the annual report to members. 
 
  (h)  Ensure that a bond is acquired for the faithful discharge of the duties in 
such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. 
 
  (i)  In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Chief Financial 
Officer (Treasurer) and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of 
Incorporation of the Congregation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned from time 
to time by the Board of Directors. 
 



  (j) Be empowered to negotiate dues amounts with individual member units 
and to designate a proxy to negotiate dues amounts with individual member units. 

 
(k) Report on a regular basis to the Board of Directors on the status of the 

membership as a whole, including but not limited to the number of member units 
who have joined since the last report and the number of member units who have 
resigned. 

 
  (l) Be responsible for the collection of all funds due to the Congregation. 
 
  (m) Maintain and revise, as necessary, the billing procedures in order to 
provide maximum ability to prevent financial delinquencies. 
 
  (n) Develop, implement, and monitor continuous programs for the billing 
and collection of all amounts due to the Congregation from its members. 
 

5.10  The Chief Financial Officer shall have the option to convene and chair a 
Finance Committee.  

 
(a) Sitting members of the Executive Committee or past officers shall be 

permitted to serve on the Finance Committee at the discretion of the Chief Financial 
Officer. 

 
(b) The Finance Committee shall, at the direction of the Chief Financial 

Officer, be empowered to discuss, accept or reject requests for dues reductions.  
 

 
 
 5.11  The Officers of the Congregation shall serve without compensation. Officers of 
the Congregation may not be compensated for any other role they hold within, or in aid of, 
the Congregation. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
 6.01  There shall be an Executive Committee consisting of all officers, immediate 
past-president, and president of Sisterhood (or designated Sisterhood representative.).  
 
 6.02 The President at their sole discretion may appoint members-at-large to the 
Executive Committee.  Such members-at-large retain no voting rights on the Board of 
Directors. Members-at-large are appointed for a one-year term. An appointment as 
member-at-large for one year does not imply an automatically renewing or ongoing 
appointment. Members-at-large serve at the pleasure of the leadership and their status 
may be revoked at any time for any reason. 
 
 6.03 The immediate past-president of the Congregation shall may serve as 
Parliamentarian. 
 
 6.04  The Executive Committee shall meet at least once each month. The President 
may call additional meetings as required.The Executive Committee shall customarily meet 
once a month, but may meet more or less frequently at the discretion of the President.  



 
 6.05  Official minutes of meetings of the Executive Committee are not required to be 
kept. 
 
 6.06  It is the role of theThe Executive Committee shall to assist the President in the 
day-to-day operation of the Congregation and formulate policies for presentation to the 
Board of Directors. 
 
 6.07  The Executive Committee may act in emergency matters in all matters of 
congregational business with the exception of any matters which these By-Laws 
specifically assign to the Board of Directors or membership. 
 
 6.08  The Executive Committee shall serve as a Personnel Committee. In such 
capacity, the Executive Committee shall be responsible for assisting the President in 
implementing direction from the Board of Directors regarding the negotiation of contracts, 
evaluations, disciplinary and other administrative matters. After consultation with the 
Executive Committee, the President The Executive Committee shall recommend, for 
approval by the Board of Directors, negotiated contracts, employee disciplinary action, 
resolution of disputes with employees, and other employee-related matters requiring an 
expenditure of funds or contractual commitment of the Congregation. The employees 
covered by this section are the Rrabbi(s), Ccantor(s), Director of Education, and the 
administrative staff of the Congregation All meetings and proceedings of the Personnel 
Committee shall be confidential. 
 

 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 

 
 7.01 The Board of Directors may establish whatever commissions and committees 
it deems advisable. 
 
 7.02 The responsibility of commissions and committees will be set forth in the 
written rules, regulations, and policies published by the Board of Directors of the 
corporation. Commissions or committees shall be authorized to adopt rules, regulations, 
and policies for the transaction of their business, provided such rules, regulations, and 
policies do not conflict with the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, or other written 
rules, regulations, and policies adopted by the Congregation and approved by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
 7.03 Unless otherwise set forth in these Bylaws, the President shall appoint all 
commission and committee members. A committee or commission member must be a 
member in good standing of the Congregation. Non-members may serve as advisory 
members of committees and commissions but hold no voting rights.  
 
 7.04 Chairpersons of commissions or standing committees who are not members 
of the Board of Directors shall serve as non-voting ex-officio members of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
 7.05 Among the standing Committees of the Congregation shall be a Marketing 
Committee.   



 
  (a)  It shall be the role of the Marketing Committee to ensure that any event, 
person, or cause promoted by Congregation Emanu El through any medium, or any use of 
the Congregation Emanu El logo or identity, is consistent with the values and mission of 
Congregation Emanu El. 
 

 (b)  The Marketing Committee shall have, as standing members, the President of 
the Congregation, Rabbi, and one member of the administrative staff. The President, at 
their discretion, may appoint additional members. In the absence of a formal Marketing 
Committee, the Executive Committee may function as the Marketing Committee. 
 

 (c)  As a general rule, Congregation Emanu El’s electronic, print, or broadcast 
promotions shall be solely for the benefit of Congregation Emanu El and not for any 
affiliated group. The Marketing Committee shall retain sole power to grant exceptions to 
this rule. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, DEPOSITS 

FUNDS AND CORPORATE PROPERTIES 
   
 8.01 The Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may 
by resolution authorize any officer or agent of the Congregation to enter into any contract 
or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Congregation, 
and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, 
no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Congregation 
by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniarily for 
any purpose or in any amount. 
 
 8.02 Checks, drafts, promissory notes, order for the payment of money, and other 
evidences of indebtedness of the Congregation shall be signed by those officers so 
designated by resolution of the Board of Directors of the Congregation. 
 
 8.03 All funds of the Congregation shall be deposited to the credit of the 
Congregation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of 
Directors may select. 
 
 8.04 The Board of Directors may accept, on behalf of the Congregation, outright or 
in trust, any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the general purposes or for any special 
purpose of the Congregation. 
 
 8.05 Members may not act for the Congregation unless expressly authorized to do 
so by the Directors or Congregational Officers. Congregation stationery or substitutes 
therefor may be used only by directors, officers, commissions, committees and authorized 
agents and employees whose work necessitates official correspondence. No member may 
incur any obligation for the Congregation unless expressly authorized to do so by these 
Bylaws or the Board of Directors. 
 
 8.06 Acceptance of any and all gifts of real property, equipment, or artifacts shall 
be at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Equipment or artifacts given to the 
Congregation shall be considered as gifts and shall be solely under the control of the Board 



of Directors. Equipment or artifacts loaned to the Congregation shall be governed by 
written agreements between the donor (lessor) and the Congregation. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
CORPORATE RECORDS, REPORTS, AND SEAL 

 
 9.01 The Congregation shall keep at its principal office, or at such other place as 
the Board of Directors may order, minutes of all meetings of Directors and of all meetings 
of members, with the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, 
how authorized, the notice given, the names of those present at Directors' meeting(s), the 
number of members present at members' meeting(s), and the proceedings thereof. 
 
 9.02 The Congregation shall keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of 
its properties and business transactions, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, 
receipts, disbursements, gains, and losses. 
 
 9.03 On request of an assessor, the Congregation shall make available at its 
principal office in California, or at a place mutually acceptable to the assessor and to the 
Congregation, a true copy of business records relevant to the amount, costs, and value of 
property, subject to local assessment, which it owns, claims, possesses, or controls within 
the county. 
 
 9.04 The books of account shall, at all reasonable times, be open to the inspection 
by any Director. Every Director shall have the absolute right, at any reasonable time, to 
inspect all books, records, documents of every kind, and the physical properties of the 
Congregation. Such inspection may be made in person or by agent or attorney, and the right 
of inspection includes the right to make extracts. 
 
 9.05 The books of account and the minutes of meetings of the Directors and 
members shall be open to inspection on the written demand of any voting member, at any 
reasonable time, for a purpose reasonably related to the interest of the member and shall 
be exhibited at any time when required by the demand, in writing or made orally at a 
meeting, of ten percent (10%) or more of the voting members of the Congregation. Such 
inspection may be made in person or by agents or attorney, and the right or inspection 
other than at a members' meeting shall be made in  writing by the President, secretary, 
assistant secretary of the Congregation. 
 
 9.06 The Board of Directors shall provide for the preparation and submission to 
the members of an annual financial statement within one hundred twenty (120) days after 
of the close of the fiscal year. Such report shall summarize the congregation's financial 
activities for the preceding year. The financial statement shall contain a summary of 
receipts and disbursements, and be prepared in such manner and format as is sanctioned 
by sound accounting practices. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE X 
FISCAL YEAR 

 
 10.01 The fiscal year of the Congregation shall begin on the first day of July and end 
on the last day of June in each year. 



 
 

ARTICLE XI 
BYLAWS 

 
 11.01 These Bylaws shall become effective on July 1, 202118, at which time all 
other Bylaws of the Congregation heretofore adopted shall be revoked. Amendments to 
these Bylaws shall become effective immediately on their adoption unless the Board of 
Directors or members, in adopting them as hereinafter provided, provide that they are to 
become effective at a later date. 
 
 11.02 Subject to the limitations contained in the Articles of Incorporation of the 
Congregation and to any provisions of law applicable to the amendments of Bylaws of a 
non-profit public benefit corporation, these Bylaws or any of them may be altered, 
amended, or repealed by new Bylaws adopted. This may be done by the vote or written 
assent of a majority of the members entitled to vote or by the vote of a majority of a 
quorum at a meeting duly called and noticed for the purpose in accordance with Section 
3.03 hereof, provided such notice is given not less than thirty (30) days prior to such 
meeting. 
 
 11.03 These bylaws shall be subject to review by a committee appointed by the 
President at least once every five years. Draft bylaws must be available to the general 
congregation for review sixty (60) days before the general meeting. In the event that no 
changes are required, the act of review shall satisfy this requirement. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE XII 
MISCELLANEOUSCLERGY 

 
 12.01 The Rabbi(s), Cantor(s) and Director of Education shall be voting members of 
the Congregation as defined in Section 2.02 but shall not have the right to hold office. 
 
 12.02 The Board of Directors shall have the powers to appoint and set terms of 
employment for all employees and agents of the Congregation unless otherwise specified, 
and may delegate this power as deemed necessary. 
 
 12.03 (a) The Rabbi(s) shall be the religious and spiritual leader of the 
Congregation. The Rabbi(s) shall have the right to attend all meetings of the Board of 
Directors and the Congregation, except when requested for some special reason to absent 
him/herself.themselves. 
 
  (b) The initial appointment of a Rabbi shall be by a majority vote at a 
regular or special meeting of the Congregation. Continuations in office shall be by majority 
vote of the Board of Directors. 
 
 
   (i) The appointment of an Interim Rabbi shall follow the same rules 
for appointment as the permanent (settled) Rabbi. A Rabbi employed as an “Interim Rabbi” 
shall act as the Rabbi of the Congregation according to the rules set out for interim rabbis 
by the Central Conference of American Rabbis.  
 



   (ii) A Rabbi engaged for a single event may be appointed by the Board 
of Directors, without a vote of the Congregation. 
  
  (c) The Rabbi(s) shall be responsible for the educational program of the 
synagogue and shall perform all other duties incumbent upon and appropriate to the 
position of Rabbi. The pulpit and its occupancy shall be entirely within the province of the 
Rabbi(s). Complete freedom of the pulpit is guaranteed to the Rabbi(s) The Rabbi shall 
conduct and be responsible for conducting worship services and religious observances. 
 
  (d)  The Board of Directors may elect an Associate Rabbi, or any Assistant 
Rabbi, to perform such duties as specified by the Board. 
 
  (e) The Board of Directors may elect a Cantor to perform such duties as 
specified by the Board of Directors. The Cantor shall be the guide of the Congregation in all 
matters affecting the Jewish musical activities of the Congregation and, in consultation with 
the Rabbi(s), shall decide upon all Jewish musical programs of the Congregation. The 
Cantor shall participate in religious rites and services in the synagogue under the 
supervision of the Rabbi. The Cantor shall have the right to attend all meetings of the Board 
of Directors and the Congregation, except when requested for some specific reason to 
absent him/herself.themselves. 
 
  (f) The Board of Directors may elect other professional personnel to 
perform such duties as specified. 
 
  (g) The Board of Directors may elect a Rabbi(s) to the status of Rabbi 
Emeritus  or Rabbi Emerita at the time of retirement provided the Rabbi has served the 
Congregation for a minimum of five (5) years. 
 
  (h) In matters of relationships between the Congregation and the 
professional staff, the guidelines contained in the documents adopted by the Union of 
Reform Judaism and the Central Conference of American Rabbis shall be invoked. 
 
  (i)  The Rabbi(s) of the congregation shall be members in good standing 
of the Central Conference of American Rabbis. However the Board with a vote of two thirds 
of its members may dispense with this requirement so long as the Rabbi is a member in 
good standing of some other national Rabbinic body recognized as such by the Board. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
 12.0413.01 Excepting cemetery lots, as hereinafter stated, and gifts to the 
Congregation, no real property belonging to the Congregation shall be sold, transferred, or 
acquired, except by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors present, or, lacking 
such vote, by a majority vote of the members present at a membership meeting called for 
the purpose of considering such acquisition or disposition or transfer of real property, or at 
an Annual Meeting provided that the call to the meeting includes notification of the 
consideration of such measure. 
 
 12.0513.02 The Home of Eternity Cemetery, located at 8th and Sierra Way in the 
City and County of San Bernardino, is the property of the Congregation Emanu El. The 
cemetery shall be operated by the Board of Managers of the Home of Eternity Cemetery to 
be appointed by the Board of Directors. 



 
 12.0613.03 The use of the synagogue sanctuary for funerals shall be available for 
the funerals of all current members of the Congregation or such other persons as the 
officers of the Congregation may approve. 
 
 12.0713.04 The Congregation shall be affiliated with the Union for Reform 
Judaism. Other national and local affiliations may be recommended by the Board of 
Directors and approved by a majority vote of the members of the Congregation at the 
Annual Meeting or at a special meeting called for the purpose.  
 
 
 

-END- 
 


	Annual Meeting Letter
	Annual Meeting Minutes May 2020
	Annual SJL report 2021
	March 2021 BS
	2021-2022 Budget for Board Approval
	BYLAWS CEE 2021 draft to Congregation
	ADPFA5C.tmp
	MAY 21, 2020
	In person and…
	via zoom: https://zoom.us/j/5019876154?pwd=U0UrRC8rcnQzMUtkbUhzeHNSNzZ5Zz09
	LEARNING
	1. Why We Wear Our Masks Stuart Sweet, President

	BUSINESS
	2. Certification of Quorum and Approval of Motions Michael Reiter, Secretary

	REPORTS
	3. Report  Rabbi Lindy Reznick
	4. Report  Cantor Jennifer Bern-Vogel
	5. Financial Report Kathy Rosenfeld, Chief Financial Officer
	6. Sisterhood Report Karyn Lehmann, Sisterhood President
	7. Member Memorial Rabbi Lindy Reznick
	8. Report of Nominating Committee Jeffrey Spears, Past President
	9. Bylaws Changes Stuart Sweet
	10. President’s Award and President’s Report Stuart Sweet
	11. Good and Welfare



	Annual Agenda May21.pdf
	MAY 20, 2021
	In person and…
	via zoom: https://zoom.us/j/5019876154?pwd=U0UrRC8rcnQzMUtkbUhzeHNSNzZ5Zz09
	LEARNING
	1. Why We Wear Our Masks Stuart Sweet, President

	BUSINESS
	2. Certification of Quorum and Approval of Motions Michael Reiter, Secretary

	REPORTS
	3. Report  Rabbi Lindy Reznick
	4. Report  Cantor Jennifer Bern-Vogel
	5. Financial Report Kathy Rosenfeld, Chief Financial Officer
	6. Sisterhood Report Karyn Lehmann, Sisterhood President
	7. Member Memorial Rabbi Lindy Reznick
	8. Report of Nominating Committee Jeffrey Spears, Past President
	9. Bylaws Changes Stuart Sweet
	10. President’s Award and President’s Report Stuart Sweet
	11. Good and Welfare




